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Total number of vessels: 6

Total loading capacity: 304,449 dwt

ECO design MR Product tankers: 4

ICE class MR Product tankers: 2

TNG’s MR average age – 
owned vessels 4,7 years 

World fleet MR average age - 
9,4 years

MT Vukovar, built: 2015

ECO design MR product tanker

Lenght/width: 183/32 m

Cargo capacity: 49,990 dwt 

MT Zoilo, built: 2015

ECO design MR product tanker

Lenght/width: 183/32 m

Cargo capacity: 49,990 dwt

MT Dalmacija,  built: 2015

ECO design MR product tanker

Lenght/width: 183/32 m

Cargo capacity: 49,990 dwt

MT Pag, built: 2015

ECO design MR product tanker

Lenght/width: 183/32 m

Cargo capacity: 49,990 dwt

MT Velebit, built: 2011

ICE class MR product tanker

Lenght/width: 195/32 m

Cargo capacity: 52,554 dwt

MT Vinjerac, built: 2011

ICE class MR product tanker

Lenght/width: 195/32 m

Cargo capacity: 51,935 dwt
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Tankerska Next Generation is a shipping company 
focused exclusively on the MR product tanker segment. 
The initiator of its incorporation was Tankerska Plovidba, 
an established Croatian shipping company with 60-year 
tradition, which is providing technical, crew and commer-
cial management to TNG. 

The main markets in which the Company operates is 
the international maritime transport of oil products and 
edible oil, and therefore provides transport services to 
large energy companies, large oil retailers and large 
manufacturers of oil and oil products and various other 
entities that depend on sea transport.

TNG was incorporated in August 2014, followed by 
Tankerska Plovidba contributing its 2 existing conventional 
MR product tankers, cash and one fully funded eco-design 
newbuilding contract with expected delivery in Q4 2015 
– m/t Dalmacija. In February 2015 other investors had 
the opportunity to partake in the IPO of TNG.  Through 
the IPO, TNG gained strong partners in institutional and 
private investors whereby HRK 208 million (USD 31million) 
was raised in the process (HRK 65 per share). 

The funds raised through the IPO, together with bank 
debt, were utilized to acquire two newbuilding contracts 
for MR vessels. First of two – m/t Vukovar was delivered 
in April, and the second – m/t Zoilo in July 2015. Both 
vessels are fully operational from the day of delivery. 

Furthermore, capital raising continued in Q2 2015. The 
management saw a good opportunity for the acquisition 
of another newbuilding vessel; the major shareholders 
contributed another HRK 104 million (USD16million) in 
June 2015. TNG utilized raised funds in July and acquired 
the contract for a newbuilding vessel – m/t Pag which 
was delivered in December 2015., days after delivery of 
m/t Dalmacija.

At the end of 2018 TNG operates a fleet of 6 vessels, 
and holds one medium-term time charter contract, which 
was signed in accordance with usual market conditions 
and is based on industry standard terms for such agree-
ments. During 2017 and 2018 the time charter contracts 
for most vessels expired, and the vessels  were more 
strongly engaged in the spot market during 2018, thus 
achieving a better commercial result than it could have 
been achieved by contracting them on time charter 
during the past period.

TNG conducts it business operations in a manner that 
is believed will enhance its ability to pay dividends and 
maximize value to its shareholders. TNG aims to timely 
acquire its vessels, which ensures efficient use of the 
capital and minimizes the leverage. The goal of the 
fleet management strategy is to increase cash flow and 
profitability through outsourcing most of the manage-

ment functions to a fleet manager which will improve 
the measurability and cost competitiveness of business 
because it will allow TNG to keep its flexible and simple 
organizational structure without realizing significant 
additional overheads. This will enable the efficient 
management of assets and liabilities of the company 
and ensure a stable return to the shareholders.

Key drivers for product tanker companies include among 
other global economic recovery and the shift in refining 
capacities from West to East. Namely, the current global 
trend is dislocating refineries, mainly from Europe to the 
Middle East and Asia, increasing routes the product tankers 
have to take in order to connect supply and demand. At 
the same time, the level of trade in petroleum products 
has been increasing.

The Company’s strategy is to be a reliable, efficient and 
responsible provider of seaborne refined petroleum 
product transportation services and to manage and 
expand the Group in a manner that is believed will enable 
the Company to increase its distributable cash flow, 
enhance its ability to pay dividends and maximize value 
to its shareholders. The Company intends to realize these 
objectives by pursuing the following:

Focus on the development of the fleet, and the acquisition 
and management of vessels in the product tanker segment, 
focusing on product tankers of medium capacity, which 
are the main labour force in the petroleum derivatives 
market. MR tankers are flexible because they are small 
enough that they can access a wide range of ports, and 
because of this flexibility and the possibility of handling 
the most common quantities of cargo, are sought-after 
by charterers.

To maintain superior customer service by maintaining high 
standards of reliability, safety, environment and quality.
Timely procure modern used and/or re-sale tankers and/
or reasonably arrange the newbuildings and timely sell 
vessels in line with market conditions.

Increase cash flow and profitability by outsourcing 
most of the management functions to a fleet manager. 
Management believes that the agreement with an 
external management will improve the measurability and 
cost competitiveness of business because it will allow 
the TNG to expand its fleet without realizing significant 
additional overheads

Maintain a strong balance sheet through moderate 
debt  leverage to potentially finance future purchases 
with approximately 35-45% of equity capital. This would 
facilitate the possibility of using a substantial part of the 
cash flow to pay dividends, but also improve conditions 
in the market as banks, shipyards and outsourcers prefer 
better capitalized contracting parties.

About uss
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After three bleak quarters, the market took a long awaited 
upward turn towards the end of the fourth quarter i.e. 
effectively in December 2018. The development was largely 
unforeseen but according to some, due to an overlapping 
of increased transport demand as a result of OPEC, the 
United States and Russia gradually increasing oil produc-
tion. In addition, the somewhat increased phasing-out 
of older vessels also contributed to a generally better 
balance between supply and demand. 

Overall, with the exception of the final weeks’ runaway, 
2018 was a weak year for the tanker market; although 
somewhat less for Tankerska Next Generation. As a result, 
during the course of the year, financial effects of a poor 
market were somewhat overcome due to previously 
signed time charters which meant that, on the other 
hand, the market development in Q4 was not picked up 
until the very end of the quarter. The financial result was 
influenced, inter alia, by the decision of the Management 
Board on value impairment of tangible assets, whereby 
the Company found that there are reasons to change the 
book value of the vessels. 

Looking at the tanker market as a whole, limited activities 
brought limited freight rates and just before all hopes 
were abandoned the year ended on an exuberant note. 
The first three quarters of the year were greatly affected 
by OPEC’s reduced production and the stock withdrawals 
in consuming countries that have been taking place since 
summer 2016. Overall, this resulted in reduced transport 
demand, which, in combination with extensive Far East 
ship deliveries, led to mainly miserable freight rates.

Since October, there has been a sharp rise in virtually all 
tanker segments, with freight rates at levels we have not 
seen in several years.  On closing, 2018 finally presented 
a market situation that some had long predicted but all 
awaited. It should be pointed out that the market is still 
volatile, with relatively strong upward and downward 
fluctuations, but at a higher level than before looking to 
land on firm ground.

While opportunities in a dull market offered not much more 
than a restrained performance in terms of revenue, the 
focus during the last year has turned to more efficient cost 
control monitoring and continuing to adapt and position 
the fleet according to the current market conditions.

Maritime safety has been improving in recent years, driven 
by continually evolving regulation and the development 
of a more robust safety culture. Many shipowners are 
now much more proactive around safety than they were
in the past. The decline in the number of total losses 

and incidents year-on-year, is likely to be a reflection of 
this improving safety culture and this bodes well for the 
shipping industry. However, it should not be complacent. 
Economic strains have led to cost-cutting in the sector, 
which could potentially have negative implications for 
maintenance, training and qualified personnel. Opera-
tionally, TNG continued to have an efficient and well-
functioning professional operation. 2018 was another 
year in which there were no serious incidents on any of 
our vessels. Management continues to make efforts in 
finding ways on how  to utilise the competitive advan-
tage of its ICE class and ECO fleet in which it manages 
to outpreform peers.

“We were pleased to see 
improvement in the rates on the 
spot market late in the year, with 
MR average TCE levels reaching 

high teens in late December 
and with even better markets 

anticipated in 2019 as the impact 
of IMO 2020 begins to move in.”

We were pleased to see improvement in the rates on 
the spot market late in the year, with MR average TCE 
levels reaching high teens in late December and with even 
better markets anticipated in 2019 as the impact of IMO 
2020 begins to move in. The view among peers is that 
recent strength in the spot market only re-enforces the 
view that we are in the early stages of a market recovery.

IMO 2020 should have significant implications for the 
product tanker market. While much of the focus on the
 IMO 2020 regulations has been related to the scrubber 
debate, we believe the new low sulfur regulations will 
have significant implications for shipping. 

The shift to low-sulfur fuel oil is expected to result in a 
significant increase in demand for compliant fuels together 
with the dislocation of global refining capacity. 

We believe increased trade flows and volumes will result 
in shifting trading patterns and have positive implications 
for ton-mile demand.

John Karavanić,
CEO

Comments from the CEO
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300.0 mil. kn ~ USD 47.8 mil.  
Vessel revenues

88.28 mil. kn ~ USD 14.1 mil.
EBITDA

32.6 mil. kn ~ USD 5.2 mil.
EBIT

6.3 mil. kn ~ USD 0.97 mil.
Net profit

Selected financials
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Commercial results

“The stronger engagement of the vessels in the spot market maximized their commercial 

potential thus achieving a better commercial result than it could have been achieved by 

contracting them on time charter during the past period”
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95.08 mil. kn ~ USD 15.14 mil.
Vessel operating expenses

104.9 mil. kn ~ USD 16.7 mil.
Voyage related costs and commision

  5.9 mil. kn ~ USD 0.93 mil.
General and administrative

Expenses summary
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TPNG-R-A SHARES

Share capital: 436,667,250.00 kn

Issued shares: 8,733,345

Treasury shares: 13,200

Trading data:

____________________________

Total turnover in 2018: 1,515,984.7 kn

Total volume in 2018:   34,765 shares

Trading days in 2018: 107

Highest price in 2018:  57.00 
(11th January and 5th February)

Lowest price in 2018:    33.40 (14. November)

Market Capitalization 31st December 2018:

338,853,786.00 kn

Top shareholders 		  No.shares	  %
31 Dec 2018

Tankerska plovidba d.d.		  4,454,994	 51.01
PBZ Croatia Osiguranje OMF	 839,000	   9.61
Erste Plavi OMF			   808,000	   9.25
Raiffeisen OMF			   752,036	   8.61
Raiffeisen DMF			   367,521	   4.21
Croatia Osiguranje                            261,065  	   2.99
Treasury shares			   13,200		    0.15
Other 				    1,237,529            14.17

Total				    8.733.345         100.00
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Tankerska Plovidba d.d.

Pension funds

Croatia osiguranje

Other institutional and private
investors
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The key points to where uncertainty has revolved around are and still prevail are the increased protec-
tionism and trade tariffs, in particular between the US and China. The common view is that the given 90 
day period is too short to iron out fundamental issues and has effectively contributed to uncertain market 
conditions surrounding the US-China relationship. Iran sanctions also had an impact on shipping markets 
namely crude oil routes but in general await the outcome of waivers to (or not) be renewed in May 2019.
The lingering debate in wake of the preparations for IMO 0.5% sulphur emission restrictions set to be 
effective on January 1st 2020 directing the majority of ship in a new low sulphur fuel burning future. 
According to reports users of scrubber technology are likely to remain in the minority. A relatively small 
number of scrubber installations is in fact a vote of confidence in refiners and oil majors to produce 
adequate low-sulphur fuel. However we expect only a handful of countries will be ready to supply suffi-
cient quantities of low sulphur marine bunker fuel before reaching the deadline. Scrubbers essentially 
represent a mature technology for cleaning industrial exhausts but remain unproven in shipping. As 
things develop, shipowners and operators have no option but to start spending large amounts of money 
on either installing expensive scrubbers or testing more expensive low-sulphur fuels emerging onto the 
market in preparation for the January 2020 deadline. 

On the other hand, as the enforcement deadline for the Ballast Water Management Convention is begin-
ning to draw near, the expected 2019-2021 peak installation period for BWTS (ballast water treatment 
systems) is looming as  yet another operational challenge, apart from the fact it will put an additional 
dent in to Owners’ pocketbooks. 

Geopolitically, the impact of the US sanctions on Venezuela on the tanker market is yet to be seen. 
However, the measure comes at a time when tankers are finally seeing a recovery of freight rates as 
demand-supply balance continued to be tight.

For almost two decades now, China’s emergence as an economic powerhouse, with vast needs for raw 
materials imports to feed this growth, has immensely benefited the shipping industry.

However, while the country is still the most important market for global transit shipping, the apparent 
economical slowdown, triggered by the trade war of the past year, is starting to put strain to the maritime 
industry as well. 
China has been the top driver of global growth for nearly two decades now, pushing demand for seaborne 

Market conditions
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trade and being the key influencer for demand of several major trading commodities. The annual data 
of this Asian giant were revealed just a few weeks ago, sparking concerns for the economic state of the 
country. China’s GDP expanded in the previous year by 6.6%, a rate that may sound impressive compared 
to other OECD countries, but it is the lowest pace the country has seen since 1990. 

In addition, the latest quarterly growth figure stands at 6.4%, the weakest rate since the global finan-
cial crisis. With China accounting for one-third of global growth, it is no surprise that the International 
Monetary Fund revised its global economic growth forecast for 2019 by -0.2% and pointed out that risks 
for further downward corrections are high.

It is fair to point out that this slowdown has been expected by most including Beijing itself. The declining 
trend in China’s economic growth has been in the works since 2010, with the local government making 
steps to slowly transform from primarily a manufacturing based economy to a service based one. Of 
course, the impacts on global trade from this will be slow and gradual. An economic poll conducted by 
Reuters showed that the majority of economists expect China to slowdown further in 2019 down to 
6.3%, while the IMF predicts a 6.2% growth rate.
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4 Clarksons, Tanker Matrix Report, April 2019.
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TNG has completed its business year in 2018 with USD 300m HRK in revenue ( USD 47.8m), which 
increased by 6.5 percent in comparison the previous year 2017, while EBITDA amounted to HRK 87.9m 
(USD 14.0 million), which in kunas compared to HRK 110.2m realized in 2017 is a decrease of 25.7%.
The net profit of TNG was 6.3 million HRK (USD 1.0m), which is along with the unforeseen slow recovery 
in the market among other things, the consequence of the impairment decision. The vessel Dalmacija’s 
carrying amount was reduced by just under 2% of the estimated market value ​​since her book value by 
the Management’s estimates  exceeded the estimated DCF value. A loss of USD 0.627m is shown as an 
expense in the profit and loss sheet and will be shown under the financial notes report.

EBIT in 2018 amounts to HRK 32.6m (USD 5.2m) and is the result of stable income of two time charter 
contracts, contributions from the spot market and it corresponding increased costs as a result of the 
greater exposure to the spot market. Increased ship revenue during 2018 primarily reflects a customised 
employment strategy whereas a higher number of units are on the spot market (for most of the year) in 
which TNG as a company reconciles fuel, port costs and other costs associated with the voyages. This 
business strategy covers a significant part of the cost, which, for the units that are employed on time 
charter, are absorbed by the charterer and compensated through increased revenues.

The average vessel’s TCE gross daily rate during 2018 was recorded at USD 21,005 and shows a decrease 
compared to a level of USD 20,770 per day in 2017, and are in line with changes in market conditions.

2018, which is now behind us, was also, for the most part, characterized with the usual vessel’s operating 
costs i.e. costs were slightly reduced to USD 15.143 million.

Commissions and costs associated with vessel’s voyages amounted to HRK 104.9 million, unlike the 
same period in 2017 when they amounted to HRK 64.8m. This significant increase is a consequence of 
a modified employment structure whereas Dalmacija, Velebit and Pag were shifted on the spot market, 
facing higher voyage associated costs e.g. port costs and bunkers, which are absorbed by the charterer 
while operating on time charter. 

Total annual operating costs in 2018 were HRK 267.4m (USD 42.6m). These costs indicate a sharp increase 
compared to 2017 (+22.0%) which is again the consequence of the employment structure namely M/T 
Dalmacija, Velebit and Pag and their associated commissions and voyage expenses.

Depreciation costs in 2018 added up to HRK 51.4m (USD 8.2m). 
All the vessels in operation are depreciated over an estimated useful life span of 25 years on a linear 
basis to their residual value, which represents their scrap value on the international market.

The period’s general and administrative expenses were equal to HRK 5.8m (USD 0.9m) and have been 
decreased by 2.8% in comparision to 2017 as a result of increased cost control efficiency.

Results for the year 2018

Selected financials 2017
(‘000 USD)

2017
(‘000 HRK)

2018
(‘000 USD)

2018
(‘000 HRK)

Vessel revenues 42,371 280,596 47,784 300,007

EBITDA 16,635 110,166 14,003 87,919

EBIT 9,126 60,439 5,193 32,603

Net profit 4,852 32,132 1,001 6,284
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Financial position 2017
(‘000 USD)

2017
(‘000 HRK)

2018
(‘000 USD)

2018
(‘000 HRK)

Bank debt 106,938 670,467 97,556 631,106

Cash and cash equivalents 10,175 63,792 8,716 56,389

Net debt 96,763 606,675 88,840 574,717

Capital and reserves 96,242 603,418 96,491 624,227

Gearing ratio 
Net debt/(capital and reserves + Net debt) 50% 50% 48% 48%

Tankerska Next Generation Plc concluded  2018 with 2 percentage points less gearing or 48% in comparison 
to the end of 2017. This decreasing debt trend is in accordance with the loan repayment plans of TNG and 
regular decrease in indebtedness, while a further decrease in the company’s debt is expected in the future. 

Securing sufficient levels of financing (both debt and equity financing), provides stable foundations for 
delivering the company strategy and increasing distributable cash flow, while lowering the risk of the 
business by focusing on medium to long term time charter periods. 

With a goal to maximize the commercial benefits to the fleet, the vessels, whose time charter contracts 
expired during the year, have been transferred to the spot market. This model of employment at the 
current market conditions offers management enough flexibility to timely react to the positive changes 
in hire rates, while it simultaneously requires a higher liquidity, due to the fact that the ship owner covers 
the voyage related expenses in advance of being compensated, while on time charter the Owner receives 
the hire upfront. 

Expenses summary 2017
(‘000 USD)

2017
(‘000 HRK)

2018
(‘000 USD)

2018
(‘000 HRK)

Commission and voyage related costs (9,778) (64,756) (16,709) (104,903)

Vessel operating expenses (14,288) (94,615) (15,143) (95,076)

General and administrative (907) (6,006) (933) (5,855)

Total operating expenses (25,738) (170,442) (42,595) (267,426)



Audited
2017

(‘000 USD)
2017

(‘000 HRK)
2018

(‘000 USD)
2018

(‘000 HRK)

Vessel revenues 42,371 280,596 47,784 300,007

Total revenues 42,373 280,608 47,788 300,029

Commission and voyage related costs (9,778) (64,756) (16,709) (104,903)

Vessel operating expenses (14,288) (94,615) (15,143) (95,076)

General and administrative (907) (6,006) (933) (5,855)

Total operating expenses (25,738) (170,442) (34,412) (216,049)

EBITDA 16,635 110,166 14,003 87,919

Depreciation and amortization (7,509) (49,727) (8,183) (51,377)

Impairement - - (627) (3,939)

Operating profit (EBIT) 9,126 60,439 5,193 32,603

Financial gains 23 149 689 4,327

Financial expenses (4,297) (28,456) (4,881) (30,646)

NET INCOME 4,852 32,132 1,001 6,284

Net foreign exchange gains (losses) 465 (81,264) (1,542) 19,757

Other comprehensive income 5,317 (49,132) (541) 26,041

Weighted average number of shares 
outstanding basic & diluted (thou,) 8,720,145 8,720,145 8,720,145 8,720,145

Net income (loss) per share, basic & diluted 0.56 3.68 0.11 0,72

FinancialsFinancials
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Income statement and statement of other comprehensive 
income for period from Dec 31st 2017 to Dec 31st 2018



Audited
2017

(‘000 USD)
2017

(‘000 HRK)
2018

(‘000 USD)
2018

(‘000 HRK)

Non-Current Assets 191,928 1,203,337 183,393 1,186,408

Vessels 191,928 1,203,337 183,377 1,186,302

Current Assets 14,769 92,597 15,538 100,517

Inventory 1,335 8,370 2,130 13,779

Accounts receivable 2,803 17,574 3,990 25,806

Cash and cash equivalents 10,175 63,792 8,716 56,389

Other current assets 456 2,861 702 4,543

TOTAL ASSETS 206,697 1,295,934 198,931 1,286,925

Sharehlders equity 96,242 603,418 96,491 624,227

Share capital 68,988 436,667 68,988 436,667

Share premium 10,179 68,426 10,179 68,426

Reserves 9,269 57,030 9,026 58,637

Retained earnings 10,388 67,725 12,422 67,170

Exchange differences (2,582) (26,430) (4,124) (6,673)

Non-Current Liabilities 97,556 611,647 86,174 557,476

Bank debt 97,556 611,647 86,174 557,476

Current Liabilities 12,899 80,869 16,266 105,222

Bank debt 9,382 58,820 11,382 73,630

Accounts payable 2,758 17,294 4,053 26,216

Other current liabilities 759 4,755 831 5,376

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS 
EQUITY

206,697 1,295,934 198,931 1,286,925
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Balance sheet at the date of December 31st 2018 



Revidirano
2017

(‘000 USD)
2017

(‘000 HRK)
2018

(‘000 USD)
2018

(‘000 HRK)

Profit before tax 4,852 32,132 1,001 6,284

Depreciation and amortisation 7,509 49,727 8,183 51,377

Changes in working capital (4,897) (32,434) (4,984) (31,294)

Other 4,384 27,606 4,292 26,677

Cash flow from operating activities 11,848 77,031 9,119 56,983

Cash inflows from investing activities - - - -

Cash outflows from investing activities (602) (3,983) (55) (346)

Cash flow from investing activities (602) (3,983) (55) (346)

Cash flow from financing activities 3,787 25,079 - -

Cash outflows from financing activities (10,986) (72,754) (10,500) (65,920)

Cash flow from financing activities (7,199) (47,675) (10,500) (65,920)

Net changes in cash 4,047 25,373 (1,436) (9,283)

Cash and cash equivalents (beginning of period) 6,126 43,915 10,175 63,792

Effects of exchange rate changes on the balance of 
cash

2 (5,496) (23) 1,880

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (END OF PERIOD) 10,175 63,792 8,716 56,389
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Cash flow statement for period 
from Dec 31st 2017 to Dec 31st 2018

Financials



Statement of changes in equity for period 
from Dec 31st 2017 to Dec 31st 2018

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 Dec 2018

Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings 
Account

Foreign 
exchange

translation
reserves

Other
reserves

Share 
premium

Purchase 
of treasury 

shares 
Total

(‘000 USD) (‘000 USD) (‘000 USD) (‘000 USD) (‘000 USD) (‘000 USD) (‘000 USD)

Balance at 31 December 2017  68,988 10,388 (2,582) 9,412 10,179 (143) 96,242

Profit for the period - 1,001 - - - - 1,001

Exchange difference on foreign 
operations

- - (1,542) - - - (1,542)

Total comprehensive income - 1,001 (1,542) - - - (541)

Transfered to reserves in yearly schedule - 243 - (243) - - -

Declared dividend - 790 - - - - 790

Balance at 31 December 2018  68,988 12,422 (4,124) 9,169 10,179 (143) 96,491

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 Dec 2018

Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Earnings 
Account

Foreign 
exchange

translation
reserves

Other
reserves

Share 
premium

Purchase 
of treasury 

shares 
Total

(‘000 HRK) (‘000 HRK) (‘000 HRK) (‘000 HRK) (‘000 HRK) (‘000 HRK) (‘000 HRK)

Balance at 31 December 2017  436,667 67,725 (26,430) 58,027 68,426 (997) 603,418

Profit for the period - 6,284 - - - - 6,284

Exchange difference on foreign 
operations

- - 19,757 - - - 19,757

Total comprehensive income - 6,284 19,757 - - - 26,041

Declared dividend - (5,232) - - - - (5,232)

Transfered to reserves in yearly schedule - (1,607) - 1,607 - - -

Balance at 31 December 2018 436,667 67,170 (6,673) 59,634 68,426 (997) 624,227
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Fleet operating data
20 |  TNG d.d .  |  ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Currently TNG’s fleet consists of six MR tankers in 
operation (Velebit, Vinjerac, Vukovar, Zoilo, Dalmacija 
and Pag). The Group owns an operating fleet which 
consists of two conventional ice class tankers and 
four eco-design modern product tankers with a total 
capacity of 304,449 dwt. On December 31st 2018, 
the average age of the vessel in TNG fleet is 4.7 years. 

Dalmacija

Dalmacija was delivered on 27th November 2015, and 
chartered out on a three year time charter with the daily 
rate of USD 17,750, starting from her delivery date. 
The time charter was mutually concluded in September 
2018 with compensation for earlier redelivery.

Vinjerac

During the first quarter of 2018, TNG secured a time 
charter with the daily rate of USD 14,500  with Clear-
lake Shipping Pte Ltd („Clearlake”) who already previ-
ously chartered Vinjerac both on spot and short time 
charters. With the expiration of the current in Q2/19, 
the charterer has the option to extend the charter for 
12 months at USD 15,500 per day. 

Vukovar and Zoilo

Since their delivery in 2015 from the shipyards both 
vessels were chartered out
on three year time charter deals with prominent 
charterers. 

Vukovar was redelivered to the Company on the end of 
April 2018, while Zoilo was redelivered at the begining 
of July 2018. The vessels continue to be employed on 
the spot market in order to maximize their commercial 
potential at present market terms, or until the awaited 
time charter recovery. 

Velebit and Pag

TNG currently operates Velebit and Pag on the spot 
market, estimating how this mode of employment 
currently represents the most favourable strategy of 
using the fleet’s commercial potential by timely adapting 
to the market conditions, awaiting the recovery of time 
charter market.

Tankerska Next Generation takes on the conservative 
approach of fixing medium-term employment time 
charters for its fleet, which became apparent in the 
escalating market conditions in 2015 when key time 
charters were concluded. At the time, the concluded 
time charter contracts enabled TNG to achieve results 

above the market average. At present, the majority, or 
five out of six units, are employed on the spot market 
due to unfavourable conditions on the time charter 
market, which currently provide inadequate levels of 
cash flow. By positioning most of the fleet on the spot 
market, management has secured sufficient flexibility 
for future employment, relying on publicly available 
industry forecasts and analysis, which indicate a 
medium term freight rate recovery. 
We believe that the first indications of fundamental 
market recovery for product tankers have become 
apparent in the final weeks of the 2018.
During the first quarter m/t Vinjerac was contracted 
on a 12-month time charter with a daily rate of USD 
14,500, while during Q2 m/t Vukovar’s time charter 
expired, in addition to Q3 whan m/t Zoilo and m/t 
Dalmacija’s TCs expired and subsequently all units 
was transferred to spot market.
 
The average TCE net rate for Q4 2018 added up to 
USD 10,659. Compared to the last few quarters and an 
average 2018 TCE of USD 13,201, an obvious decrease 
from the levels recorded due to the seasonal decrease 
in oil derivatives trade combined with charter pressures 
in light of expected lower demand.

The average daily vessel operating expenses (OPEX) 
in the 2018 amounted to USD 6,755 per vessel, which 
is a moderate decrease in comparison to the same 
period last year.
 
The Ballast Water Convention of the International 
Maritime Organization entered into force on September 
8, 2017. After September 2017, the approved ballast 
water treatment system will have to be installed by 
the time it is necessary to renew the International Oil 
Pollution Prevention (IOPP) certificate, which for TNG 
means that the systems will be installed on vessels 
following a five-year drydock cycle that should start from 
the end of 2019, depending on the binding deadlines 
and future business conditions. 
Ecological control is growing with record-breaking 
penalties issued for pollution. New ballast water 
management rules aimed at halting the spread of 
harmful aquatic organisms are welcome, but will also 
add significant costs and potentially bring new risks 
for shipping.

The ballast water treatment system actively removes, 
kills or deactivates reproduction systems of organ-
isms in ballast waters before returning them to the 
ecosystem. The expected cost of procurement and 
installation can range from USD 450,000 to USD 
550,000 per ship depending on the preparation and 
existing ship installations.
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Vessel Capacity 
(dwt)

Type Built Shipyard Flag Employment Daily rate (USD)

Velebit 52,554
ICE class 

MR 
product

2011 Treći Maj
Croatia Croatian Voyage 

charter SPOT

Vinjerac 51,935
ICE class

MR 
product

2011 Treći Maj 
Croatia Croatian Clearlake 

Time charter
14,500

(until Q2 2019)

Vukovar 49,990 Eco MR 
product 2015 Hyundai Mipo

S.Korea Croatian Voyage 
charter SPOT

Zoilo 49,990 Eco MR 
product 2015 Hyundai Mipo

S.Korea Croatian Voyage 
charter SPOT

Dalmacija 49,990 Eco MR 
product 2015

SPP 
Shipbuilding

S.Korea
Croatian Voyage 

charter SPOT

Pag 49,990 Eco MR 
product 2015

SPP 
Shipbuilding

S.Korea
Croatian Voyage 

charter SPOT

Operativni podaci flote 2016 2017 2018

Time Charter Equivalent rates (USD, per day) 15,583 15,525 13,201

Operating days (number) 2,156 2,123 2,190

Daily vessel operating expenses (USD) 6,885 6,891 6,755

Fleet utilization % 98,2 98,6 100,0

Average number of vessels in the period 6,00 6,00 6,00

TCE Net  vs. OPEX, 2016, 2017 and 2018:

0 USD

5,000 USD

10,000 USD

15,000 USD

20,000 USD

Q1 2016 Q2 2016 Q3 2016 Q4 2016 Q1 2017 Q2 2017 Q3 2017 Q4 2017 Q1 2018 Q2 2018 Q3 2018 Q4 2018

TCE Net (USD/day) OPEX (USD/ day)
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Key events in 2018
Unaudited financial statements for Q4 2017 and the full 
year 2017 adopted  (Q1)

The meetings of the Management Board and the Super-
visory Board of Tankerska Next Generation Inc. were 
held on February 26th 2018 and the unaudited financial 
statements for the fourth quarter and the full year 2017 
were adopted.     

Audited financial statements for 2017 and unaudited 
financial statements for Q1 2018 adopted (Q2)

The meetings of the Management Board and the Super-
visory Board of Tankerska Next Generation Inc. were held 
on 27 April 2018.

Supervisory Board considered and adopted the Finan-
cial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 
together with Independent auditor’s report, and the 
Annual Company status report.

Furthermore, on the aforementioned session the Super-
visory board considered and adopted the unaudited 
financial statements for the first three months of 2018.

Annual general assembly meeting held (Q3)

Tankerska Next Generation Inc. Annual general assembly 
meeting was held at the Company headquarters in Zadar 
on August 1st 2018 at 11:00 hours. At the annual general 
meeting 5,943,728 votes were present, representing 
68.1609 % of the total share capital (with voting power).

All decisions of the General Assembly were passed with 
the necessary majority in the form proposed by the 
Management Board and the Supervisory Board in the 
Annual general meeting invitation.

Unaudited financial statements for Q2 and H1 2018  
adopted

The meetings of the Management Board and the Super-
visory Board of Tankerska Next Generation Inc. were held 
on July 27th 2018 and the unaudited financial statements 
for the second quarter and the first six months of 2018 
were adopted.     

Dividend payout from the profits realized in 2017 (Q3)

Tankerska Next Generation Inc. in the year ending with 31 
December 2017 realized net profit in the amount of HRK 
32,132,435.14. General Assembly adopted a decision that 
a part of net profit in the amount of HRK 5,232,087.00 
will be paid shareholders. The payout of dividend in the 

gross amount of HRK 0.60 per share started on 31st 
August 2018. A part of net profit in the amount of HRK 
1,606,621.76 was allocated to mandatory reserves, and 
a part of net profit in the amount of HRK 16,573,581.25 
was allocated to retained earnings.

Unaudited financial statements for Q3 and 9m of 2018  
adopted

The meetings of the Management Board and the Super-
visory Board of Tankerska Next Generation Inc. were held 
on November 29th 2018 and the unaudited financial 
statements for the third quarter and the first nine months 
of 2018 were adopted. 
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Key events in 2018
Tankerska Next Generation Is a shipping company focused 
exclusively on the MR product tanker segment and ownns 
and operates 6 product tankers, the main markets in 
which the Company operates is the international maritime 
transport of oil products and edible oils. Therefore, TNG 
provides transport services to oil majors, national oil 
companies, oil and chemical traders and various other 
entities that depend on sea transport worldwide.

At the end of 2018 TNG holds one medium-term time 
charter contracts, which was signed in accordance with 
usual market conditions and is based on industry standard 
terms for such agreements. 

Placing vessels on the spot market was beneficial to the 
operational efficiency and it enabled optimal geographical 
positioning of the vessels before the dryock, which 
resulted in lower expenses of the drydocks itself. 

The company continues with intent to employ the 
majority of its fleet through a medium to long-term time 
charter contracts in order to achieve predictable business 
results and cash flows that support risk mitigation for 
the shareholders. In terms of duration, future employ-
ment strategies will depend on market conditions and 
the management approach to optimum fleet manage-
ment strategy.

The Group is subject to numerous laws and regulations 
in the form of international conventions and treaties, 
national, state and local laws and national, state and 
international regulations in force in the jurisdictions in 
which the Group’s vessels operate or are enrolled. 

The Ballast Water Convention of the International 
Maritime Organization entered into force on September 
8, 2017, while at the last IMO meeting, a postponement 
of implementation was granted for a certain part of the 
existing fleet. 

After September 2017, the approved ballast water treat-
ment system will have to be installed by the time when 
it is necessary to renew the International Oil Pollution 
Prevention (IOPP) certificate, which for TNG means 
that the systems will be installed on vessels following 
a five-year drydock cycle that should start from the 
end of 2019, depending on the binding deadlines and 

future business conditions. The ballast water treatment 
system actively removes, kills or deactivates reproduction 
systems of  organisms in ballast waters before returning 
them to the ecosystem. Expected cost of procurement 
and installation can range from USD 450,000 to USD 
550,000 per ship depending on the preparation and 
existing ship installations.

According to the provisions of MARPOL by 1 January 2020 
the sulphur content in motor fuel will not be allowed to be 
greater than 0.50%, and emissions into the environment 
will not be allowed to be higher than that. Compliance 
of operational performance with these regulations can 
result in significant capital expenditures in the case of 
installing equipment to reduce sulphur emissions or can 
raise the operating costs in order to substitute a cheaper 
high sulphur fuels with more expensive low sulphur fuel.

These changes in the regulatory environment will affect 
the operations of TNG in the medium term through the 
requirements for investments in new technology in 
order to achieve full compliance of the fleet with these 
conventions. TNG completed its first five-year drydocking 
for the two conventional tankers, and we expect that 
the investments associated with these regulations will 
have an impact in the next five-year drydocking cycle, 
which we expect by the end of 2019.

The main trends and indicators related to the product 
tanker market in the medium term show stability and 
balance of supply of newbuildings and demand for a 
tonne mile, while the relocation of production capacity 
of oil products to the Far East continues, which could 
all together indicate a slight recovery of the market hire 
rates in the future. In that period, the company aims to 
ensure the sustainability of the business and maximize 
business efficiency by managing the Group in a way that 
is believed to provide the Company a consistent and 
continuous dividend policy.

Outlook 
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Risk management
TNG’s risk management policy in connection to managing 
its financial assets can be summarized as follows:

Foreign exchange risk

TNG is exposed to the following currency risks: the 
transaction risk, which is the risk of a negative impact 
of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates against the 
Croatian kuna on TNG’s cash flows from commercial 
activities; and the balance sheet risk, which is the risk 
that the net value of monetary assets on retranslation of 
kuna-denominated balances becomes lower as a result 
of changes in foreign exchange rates. 

TNG operates internationally and is exposed to changes 
of US currency as significant amount of receivables and 
foreign revenues are stated in this currency. Current TNG 
policies do not include active hedging.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of change in value of financial 
instruments due to changes in market interest rates. 
The risk of interest rate in cash flow is a risk that the 
interest expenditure on financial instruments will be 
variable during the period. As TNG has no significant 
interest-bearing assets, its operating income and cash 
flows from operations are not significantly exposed to 
fluctuations in market interest rates. TNG’s interest rate 
risk arises from long-term borrowings. TNG is exposed to 
interest rate risk on its long-term borrowings that bear 
interest at variable rates.
Arranging interest rate swaps with the key lenders provides 
for easing the risk of volatility in the variable interest 
rate, allowing the company, which operates in terms of 
pre-fixed income contracted to manage the profitability 
of operations fixing one of the major cost components.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of failure by one party to meet 
commitments to the financial instruments, what could 
cause the financial loss to the other party. Maximum 
exposure to credit risk is expressed in the highest value 
of each of the financial asset in statement of financial 
position. Basic financial assets of TNG consist of cash 
and of account balance with banks, trade receivables 
and other receivables, and of investments. Credit risk in 
liquid funds is limited as the counterparty is often the 
bank that most international agencies assessed with 
high credit ratings. 

Liquidity risk

The responsibility for managing liquidity risk rests with 
the Management Board which sets an appropriate 
liquidity risk management framework for the purpose of 
managing its short-term, medium-term and long-term 
funding and liquidity requirements. Liquidity risk, which is 
considered the risk of financing, is the risk of difficulties 
which the TNG may encounter in collecting funds to meet 
commitments associated with financial instruments. TNG 
has significant interest bearing non-current liabilities for 
loans with variable interest that expose TNG to the risk 
of cash flows. Company manages liquidity risk through 
maintaining adequate reserves and loan facilities, in 
parallel to continuously comparing planned and relished 
cash flow and maturity of receivables and liabilities.

Price risk

TNG’s activities expose it to price risk associated with 
changes in the freight rate. The daily freight rate (the spot 
rate) measured in USD per day, has historically been very 
volatile. The volatility influences day-to-day operations 
in the following ways:

• when rates are low TNG sees it as an opportunity to 
increase market exposure, and

• when rates are high TNG will seek to hedge short-term 
to medium-term exposure by chartering-out vessels or 
by actively trading freight-related derivatives.

In addition, TNG trades its spot exposed vessels in 
different pools that reduces the sensitivity to freight rate 
volatility by economies of scale and optimization of the 
fleet’s geographical position.

Operational risk

Due to the risks involved in seaborne transportation of oil 
products as well as due to very stringent requirements by 
the “oil majors”, safety and environmental compliance are 
TNG’s top operational priorities. The Fleet Manager will 
operate TNG’s vessels in a way so as to ensure maximum 
protection of the safety and health of staff, the general 
public and the environment. TNG and the Fleet Manager 
actively manage the risks inherent in TNG’s business and 
are committed to eliminating incidents that would threaten 
safety and the integrity of the vessels. Fleet Manager 
uses a risk management program that includes, among 
other, computer-aided risk analysis tools, maintenance 
and assessment programs, seafarers competence training 
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program, and seafarers workshops. 

Daily rates

Time charter rates are usually fixed during the term of the 
charter. Vessels operating on time charters for a certain 
period of time provide more predictable cash flows over 
that period of time and yield conservative profitability 
margins. Prevailing time charter rates fluctuate on a 
seasonal and year-to-year basis reflecting changes in 
spot charter rates, expectations about future spot charter 
rates and other factors. The degree of volatility in time 
charter rates is lower for longer-term time charters as 
opposed to shorter term time charters.

Employment strategy based on longer than one year 
time charter enables the mitigation of this type of risk. 

TNG and its fleet manager are comited 
to the following standards, strategies 
and insurance:

(“ISO”) 9001 for quality assurance,

ISO 14001 for environmental manage-

ment systems, 

ISO 50001 for energy management 

systems and Occupational Health and 

Safety

“OHSAS”18001 Safety Advisory Services

ISM Code - International safety manage-

ment code

Company strategy

The Company’s strategy is to be a reliable, efficient and 
responsible provider of seaborne refined petroleum product 
transportation services and to manage and expand the 
Group in a manner that is believed will enable the Company 
to increase its distributable cash flow, enhance its ability 
to pay dividends and maximize value to its shareholders. 

Business operations are based on the timely acquisi-
tion of tankers, ensuring efficient use of raised capital 
and debt minimization. Basically, fleet management is 

directed towards increasing cash flow and profitability 
through outsourcing majority of functions and services, 
maintaining a flexible and simple organizational structure 
unencumbered with additional overheads. This enables 
efficient assets and liabilities management and ensures 
a stable dividend return to shareholders.

Chartering strategy

Charterer’s financial condition and reliability is an impor-
tant factor in counterparty risk. TNG generally minimizes 
such risks by providing services to major energy corpo-
rations, large trading houses (including commodities 
traders), major crude and derivatives producers and 
other reputable entities with extenuating tradition in in 
seaborne transportation.

Insurance

The operation of any ocean-going vessel represents a 
potential risk of major losses and liabilities, death or 
injury of persons, as well as property damage caused by 
adverse weather conditions, mechanical failures, human 
error, war, terrorism, piracy and other circumstances or 
events. The transportation of oil is subject to the risk of 
pollution and to business interruptions due to political 
unrest, hostilities, labour strikes and boycotts. In addition, 
there is always an inherent possibility of marine disaster, 
including oil spills and other environmental mishaps, and 
the liabilities arising from owning and operating vessels 
in international trade. 

As an integral part of operating the vessels, TNG maintains 
insurance with first class international insurance providers 
to protect against the majority of accident-related risks 
in connection with the TNG’s marine operations.

The Company believes that the TNG’s current insurance 
program, is adequate to protect TNG against the majority 
of accident-related risks involved in the conduct of its 
business and that an appropriate level of protection and 
indemnity against pollution liability and environmental 
damage is maintained. TNG’s goal is to maintain an adequate 
insurance coverage required by its marine operations and 
to actively monitor any new regulations and threats that 
may require the TNG to revise its coverage.
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According to the Croatian Companies 
Act, (OG 111/93, 34/99, 121/99, 52/00 
– Decision CCRC, 118/03, 107/07, 
146/08, 137/09, 152/11 – lectured 
text, 111/12, 68/13 i 110/15), those 
companies whose shares are traded 
on  the regulated market are obliged to 
apply codes of corporate governance. 
Given that the total of 8.733.345 shares 
of the Company are listed under ticker 
TPNG-R-A and ISIN HRTPNGRA0000 
are listed on the  Official market of 
ZSE, the Company has adopted codes 
of corporate governance prepared by 
ZSE and CFSSA. The Code is published 
on the Zagreb Stock Exchange (www.
zse.hr). Top shareholders are listed 
on the page 10 of the Annual report. 
Taking into account the specifics of 
the business model TNG Inc. complies 
with the provisions of the Code as 
reported to the public through the 
annual survey of corporate governance 
which is published on the website of 
the company (www.tng.hr).

With a goal to reach the high stand-
ards of corporate governance the 
Company has adopted its own Code 
of corporate governance, and it has 
been prepared according to the Code 
of Zagreb Stock Exchange and CFSSA.
The Code recognizes the account-
ability of the Supervisory Board and 
Management Board and the importance 
of transparency to all the Company’s 
shareholders, including customers, 
investors and regulatory authorities. 

Exceptions are the following: 

• The company  has not ensured that 
the shareholders of the company who, 
for whatever reason, are not able 
to vote at the  General assembly in 
person, have proxies who are obliged 
to vote in accordance with instructions 
received from the shareholders, with 
no extra costs for those shareholders, 
because the Company did not receive 
that kind of request from any of its 
shareholders 
• The shareholders are not allowed to 
participate and to vote at the General 
assembly using modern communica-
tion technology, because that kind of 
participation is not provided by the 
Articles of association. The benefits 
of  the implementation of that kind of 

system and its cost efectivness will 
be examined in the future.
• Legal and statutory application 
for  the General assembly are met, 
as well as the power of attorney 
and registration for participation in 
advance. All in order to protect the 
interests of shareholders and maintain 
appropriate technical quality of the 
general assembly.
• Supervisory board is composed of 3 
members of the majority shareholder, 
and two independent members
• Succession planning will be carried 
out through early detection and 
identification of needs for successors.
• The detailed data on all earnings 
and renumerations is published in 
the Annual report. 
• Due to organizational specifics of 
the company, the Supervisory Board 
has not established appointment and 
renumeration  commission but it will 
be an ”ad hoc body” in case of need, 
considering the questions in this area.
• The amount of charges paid to the 
independent external auditors for the 
audit carried out is protected by the 
confidentiality of the audit contracts

Internal audit and risk manage-
ment 

The Audit commitee of the company 
prepares and monitors the implemen-
tation of decisions of the Supervisory 
Board relating to the system of financial 
reporting, risks related to financial 
reporting and supervises control and 
quality assurance mechanisms and 
the process of financial reporting of 
Tankerska Next Generation. Through 
continuous access to auditors the 
commitee oversees the reporting 
process, discusses key issues for 
the business set out by the auditors, 
management or the Supervisory Board 
by giving advice, recommendations 
or guidelines. The Audit Committee 
is responsible for ensuring the objec-
tivity and credibility of the information 
and reports to be submitted to the 
Supervisory Board. Obligations and 
responsibilities of the audit committee 
include the responsibility to monitor 
and review the integrity of financial 
reporting of the Company’s internal 
financial control system and the 
Company’s internal control and compli-

ance of operations of the Company. 
The Audit Committee also monitors 
the function of the external auditors 
(including the effectiveness of the 
external audit and the appointment 
of auditors and fees) and evaluates 
the effectiveness of internal audit 
activities.

Appointment and funcitions of 
the Mangement Board

Management Board is appointed and 
recalled by the Supervisory Board for 
a term that lasts up to five years, after 
which the members of the Board can 
be re-appointed. Management board 
currently consists of one member 
and can count up to three members. 
The powers of the members of the 
Board are defined by the Companies 
Act and the Articles of Association 
and include management activities 
at their own risk by taking all actions 
and decisions it deems necessary 
for the successful management of 
the Company. For certain decisions 
Management is obligated to ensure 
the approval of the Supervisory Board 
(among other things - changes to the 
Articles of Association, the acquisition 
and disposal of treasury shares). The 
Company is represented independently 
by the member of the Board. The sole 
member of the Management board 
is Mr. John Karavanić.
 
Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board consists of five 
members appointed by the General 
Assembly. The Supervisory Board is 
responsible for appointing and recalling 
of members of the Management board 
and for supervising the operations of 
the Company. In accordance with the 
provisions of the Articles of Associa-
tion the Supervisory Board gives prior 
approval for significant transactions 
and activities that the Management 
Board can not execute without their 
consent. The Supervisory Board 
established the Audit Committee.

STATEMENT ON APPLICATION OF THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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John Karavanić 
Chief Executive Officer
Mr. John Karavanić graduated from 
the Faculty of Economics in Zagreb 
in 1992. After graduation, he was 
employed with Tankerska plovidba as 
trainee in the Commercial Division. From 
1993 – 1997 he was a senior officer in 
Tanker Division in Tankerska plovidba, 
and from 1997 -1999 Department 
Manager in Tanker Department in the 
Commercial Division. Between 1999 - 
2004 he was a broker in Alan Shipping 
(a Tankerska plovidba subsidiary). He 
returned to Tankerska plovidba in 
2004 to the position of Chartering 
Manager and Deputy Commercial 
Director within the company. Since 
2014 he held a position of a Project 
Manager and Deputy Commercial 
Director in Tankerska plovidba. Since 
August 2014 Mr. Karavanić is the 
CEO of TNG.

Ivica Pijaca
President of the Supervisory board
Mr.Ivica Pijaca began his professional 
career in Tankerska plovidba as a deck 
cadet from 1992–1993. He graduated 
from the Faculty of Maritime Studies 
in Rijeka in 1998. The same year he 
was employed  as a 3rd mate in the 
Tankerska plovidba fleet. In 1999 he 
became Assistant Chartering Manager in 
Product Tanker Department in Tankerska 
plovidba, advancing to the position of 
Chartering Manager in Tanker Depart-
ment in Tankerska plovidba in 2003. 
Between 2004-2005, Mr Pijaca was 
a broker in Alan Shipping (a Tankerska 
plovidba subsidiary) and a Managing 
Director in the same company from 
2005-2006. From 2006-2013 Mr Pijaca 
was Chartering Manager in Tanker 
Department in Tankerska plovidba. 
In 2013 Mr Pijaca became a Director 
of Commercial Division, a position he 
currently holds in Tankerska plovidba.

Mario Pavić
Member of the Supervisory board and 
Audit commitee 
Mr Mario Pavić began his professional 
career in Tankerska plovidba as cadet 
between 1993 –1994. He graduated 
from the Faculty of Maritime Studies 
in Split in 1996 with the degree of 
nautical engineer. From 1997 to 

2002 he was employed as a deck 
officer in Tankerska plovidba fleet. In 
2002 he obtained a master degree in 
Maritime Engineering Management 
at the Faculty of Maritime Studies in 
Split. Between 2003-2007 he was 
Tanker Operations Manager in Tanker 
Department in Tankerska plovidba. 
Between 2007-2012, Mr Pavić was 
a broker in Alan Shipping (a Tankerska 
plovidba subsidiary) and a Managing 
Director in the same company from 
2012-2013. Since 2013, Mr Pavić is 
the Management Board member of 
Tankerska plovidba. Since 2015 Mr. 
Pavić is the CEO of Tankerska Plovidba. 

Nikola Koščica
Member of the Supervisory board
Mr. Nikola Koščica graduated in Finan-
cial Economics at London Guildhall 
University in 1996. After the graduation, 
he was employed with Dalmatinska 
banka Inc. between 1997-2001, first 
as a trainee, later as an analyst in 
Risk Management Department of the 
said bank. Between 2001-2003, he 
was initially employed as an account 
manager and later as head of Corporate 
Lending Department in Zadar Branch of 
Raiffeisenbank Austria Inc. He became 
an employee of Tankerska plovidba 
in 2004 as a Risk Manager and since 
2013 he holds a position of Director 
of Financial Division. Since August 
2015, Mr Koščica is the Management 
Board member of Tankerska plovidba.

Joško Miliša
Member of the Supervisory board
Mr. Joško Miliša graduated from the 
Faculty of Electrical Engineering 
in Zagreb and in 1992 he started 
working as a broker at a brokerage 
firm Medis, after that he worked in 
the consulting companies Consult 
Invest and ICF as a consultant on 
business acquisitions and general 
consultancy. At Erste Securities Ltd. 
he occupied the position of the Head 
of securities trading and the introduc-
tion of portfolio management. He was 
appointed in 2000 as vice-president 
of the Croatian Privatisation Fund. In 
early 2002, he co-founded the invest-
ment firm ŠTED-CAPITAL Ltd., which 
he independently and successfully 
lead till mid-2009. Currently he is the 

CEO of the investment firm Prosperus 
Invest Ltd.

Nikola Mišetić
Member of the Supervisory board
Mr. Nikola Mišetić graduated in 2002 
from the Faculty of Economics in Zagreb, 
and he finished an MBA program 
in 2009 at ISEAD business school, 
France. He began his professional 
career in 2003 as an macroeconomist 
at Volksbank Inc. Zagreb, from where 
he went to Kreditna banka Zagreb Inc. 
where he was employed as a deputy 
director for retail from 2004. till 2005. 
At McKinsey & Company Inc. he was a 
project manager from 2004. till 2011 
when he entered Adris Grupa Inc. as 
an executive director of development. 
In April 2014. Mr. Mišetić is named to 
the Management Board of Croatia 
osiguranje following acquisition of 
Croatia osiguranje by Adris group.

Sergej Dolezil
President of the Audit Commitee
Mr. Sergej Dolezil graduated in 2004 at 
Webster University Vienna, Manage-
ment with a focus on international 
business, he also completed the MBA 
program in 2009. at the IEDC Business 
School in Bled, Slovenia. In 2004 he got 
employed as a supervisor in the Tax 
Department of KPMG Croatia. From 
2010 he is employed at the INA oil & 
gas industry at the position of Lead 
Internal Auditor, and in that position 
he remained until 2013 when he was 
promoted to Head of Internal Audit. 
In April 2015 he moved to Croatia 
Osiguranje d.d., where occupied the 
position of board member financial 
advisor. In January 2016 he became 
the Head of Internal audit at Croatia 
Osiguranje, and from January 2018 unit 
June he is the CEO of CO Zdravlje d.o.o. 
From June 2018 until April 2019 he is 
Head of Mergers and Acquisitions at 
Croatia Osiguranje. As of April 2019 
he is CFO at Amodo, an insurtech 
company focusing on creating digital 
channels and insurance products 
based on usage and behaviour data.

Genarij Sutlović
Member of the Audit Commitee 
Mr. Genarij Sutlović graduated from 
the Faculty of Economics in Rijeka 

Corporate management
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in 1986. After graduation, he was 
employed in Tankerska plovidba as an 
officer from 1987 to 1989. Since 1990, 
he was employed on the position of 
Chief financial accountant from where 
he was promoted to Chief Accounting 
Officer in February 1991. At the 
position of Chief Accounting Officer 
at Tankerska Plovidba he remained 
until December 2001 when he moved 
to Stambeno Gospodarstvo Tanker, 
where he occupies the position of the 
Director of the company ever since. 

Compensations for members of 
board’s and commitee’s
Compensation for the members of 
Supervisory Board:

Compensation for the members of 
supervisory board amounts to 7,600 kn 
gross monthly, while President of the  
Supervisory board has a compenstaion 
of 9,500 kn gross monthly.  

Supervisory board members as per 
31st December 2018:
Mr. Ivica Pijaca, president
Mr. Mario Pavić, deputy president
Mr. Joško Miliša, member
Mr. Nikola Mišetić, member
Mr. Nikola Koščica, member

Compensation for the members of 
Audit commitee:
Compensation for the members of 
Audit commitee amounts to 2,000 kn 
net per session, members of the Audit 
commitee who are also members of 
the Supervisory board do not receive 
a compensation. 

Audit commitee as per 31st December 
2018:
Mr Sergej Dolezil, president
Mr. Mario Pavić, member
Mr. Genarij Sutlović, member

Members of the Management, Super-
visory board and Audit commitee who 
own the shares of the company as 
per 31st December 2018:
Mr. John Karavanić, CEO, 1,633 company 
shares,
Mr. Ivica Pijaca, Supervisory board 
president, 1,840 company shares, 
Mr. Mario Pavić, member of the Super-
visory board and Audit commitee 1  
company share, 
Mr. Nikola Koščica, member of the 

Supervisory board 1,840 company 
shares, 
Mr. Genarij Sutlović, member of the 
Audit Commitee, 525 company shares. 

Dividend policy

Tankerska Next Generation d.d. business 
policy is guided by the best practice in 
achieving benefits for its shareholders 
in an effort to maximize the profit from 
operations, while the dividend payment 
policy which follows the example of 
the most successful global shipping 
companies in the same business 
segment, will be guided by efforts to 
ensure continuity and consistency in 
dividend payments policy. Manage-
ment is further obliged to maximize 
profit devoting particular attention 
to effective management of vessels, 
strengthening its comparative advan-
tages in relation to similar shipping 
companies operating in the global 
market, while keeping operating costs 
at low, but without compromising 
safety, quality of transport services 
and the environment.

In determining proposals for dividend 
payment TNG management shall be 
guided by the Company’s earnings, 
financial position, needs and levels of 
available funds, fulfilling the commit-
ments under agreements on loans 
for financing  the construction of 
the fleet and market conditions and 
changes in the regulatory environment. 
Management  will strive to maintain 
the continuity in the dividend payment 
to shareholders by proposing payment 
of normalized company earnings as 
part of the profit in the amount of 
available funds above the minimum 
requirements of working capital 
needed for the fleet, in line with the 
needs of the strategy of commercial 
exploitation of ships, which can range 
from 600,000 to one million dollars 
depending on whether ships are 
employed on time charters or on a 
voyage basis, and in accordance with 
the mandatory financial indicators of 
the loan agreements.

Dividends paid to shareholders from 
the business results achieved in 2017

Following the successful world practice 
of shipping companies of the same 
segment, in an effort to maximize 
profit, and assurance of continuity and 
consistency in policy dividend payments 
from operating result achieved in 
2017 Company’s shareholders were 
paid a dividend of HRK 0.60 per share. 
General assembly held on 1 August 
2018 passed a decision approving the 
proposal of the Management Board 
and to distribute HRK 5,232,087,00 
to shareholders in amount of HRK 
0.60 per share, or an average dividend 
yield of 1,28% in comparison to the 
price which preceeded the General 
assembly.

2018 dividend proposal

The Management Board proposal 
of the distribution of the Company’s 
Profit for the Year 2018 is that the 
Company’s profit for 2018 should be 
allocated to mandatory reserves and 
to retained profit.

Tankerska Next Generation continu-
ously strives to minimize business risk 
by negotiating a combination of time 
charter contracts with voyage charter, 
but the volatility of the freight market 
requires increased responsibility for 
managing liquidity risk.

The responsibility for managing liquidity 
risk rests with the Management Board 
which sets an appropriate liquidity 
risk management framework for the 
purpose of managing its short-term, 
medium-term and long-term funding 
and liquidity requirements. Liquidity 
risk, which is considered the risk of 
financing, is the risk of difficulties 
which the TNG may encounter in 
collecting funds to meet commitments 
associated with financial instruments.

The decision not to pay dividends in 
2019 for 2018 is based on the business 
results achieved in the previous year 
and the market forecasts for the 
2019 product tanker segment and 
the anticipated costs associated with 
monitoring the regulatory environment.
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The concept of Corporate Social Responsibility (CRS) 
implies the integration of responsibility for the society 
and environment into the business development strategy. 
 
TNG’s key stakeholder groups comprise of customers, 
suppliers, employees, shareholders, financiers, industry 
associations, regulators and the community, and our 
continous goal is to nurture partnership and dialogue 
with each of these groups.

Corporate social responsibility as integral part 
of business strategy

The shipping industry handles about 90% of the world’s 
transported goods. In this way, shipping links production, 
people and companies in global trade and contributes to 
development and growth all over the world.  Developing 
efficient, reliable and smart solutions for transporting 
goods from producers to buyers is increasingly a key 
component in ensuring sustainable development through 
trade. Recognising that smarter global trade is closely 
tied to sustainability, we discover the premise that 
working with the linkages between social and economic 
progress holds potential to increase value for customers, 
for communities and long term competitiveness to the 
Company. 

Maritime transport is associated with a potential risk of 
large losses and liabilities, death or injuries to persons 
and damage to property caused by adverse weather 
conditions, mechanical failures, human error, war, 
terrorism, piracy and other circumstances or events. 
Transportation of petroleum products is associated with 
the risk of contamination, as well as business interruption 
due to political unrest, hostilities, strikes and boycotts. 
In addition, there is always an inherent possibility of 
maritime disasters, which include oil spills and other 
environmental impacts.

The quality of the crew and the vessel determines the 
safety of the cargo, reliability of operations and the 
flexibility to deal with unexpected situations. By putting 
the focus on quality crew and equipment we reduce 
operating costs for the company, but we also reduce 
the possible negative consequences for society as a 
whole, and guarantee the safety of the crew and the 
cargo being transported.

To achieve continuous reliability, shipping companies 
are required to entrust its operations to employees 
with the right competencies, which will with responsible 
management successfully conclude each trip. Our sailors 
and employees are key to achieving these objectives and 
therefore TNG is determined to attract and retain the best 
candidates. In addition to quality and motivated employees 
well maintained vessels are the key to successful and 
timely completed voyages. Good maintenance of ships 
and ship systems is crucial to minimize the possibility of 
failures, delays and errors that can manifest in negative 
externalities for the society.

Sustainability and 
social responsability
The main goals of sustainabilty and social responsability are: cor-
porate social responsibility as integral part of business strategy, 
environmental protection, economic sustainability, market rela-
tions, work environment and community relations

TNG key stakeholder group:

CUSTOMERS

SUPPLIERS

EMPLOYEES

SHAREHOLDERS

FINANCIERS

INDUSTRY 
ASSOCIATIONS

REGULATORS

COMMUNITY
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Environmental protection

The Policy of managing TNG fleet is to ensure that all 
owned or managed vessels are operated to comply 
with all necessary requirements to protect the Environ-
ment and in compliance with the existing International 
Conventions, Administration or other applicable Regu-
lations, which will further help to achive the 17 goals of 
UN’s Sustainable development.

It shall be accomplished through the implementation of 
the following:

• Taking precautions to protect through the environ-
ment in which the Company’s ships operate.

• High standards in operating and maintaining Com-
pany’s ships.

•  Responding to hazards quickly, efficiently and with 
the minimum possible impact to the environment and 
natural resources.

• Commitment to continuous improvements in our 
environmental performance and pollution prevention 
across all our activities.

• Correct treatment and handling of cargo products be-
ing transported, bunker and lubrication oils purchased, 
paints, chemicals, solvents, other consumables mate-
rials and in order to comply with statutory rules and 
regulations.

• Assessing identified risks for possible environmental 
impacts originating from the various environmental as-
pects of shipping business.

•  Train crew to prevent accidental and whenever pos-
sible operational discharges of pollutants to the envi-
ronment.

All shore based and shipboard personnel of Tankerska 
group are strictly required to adhere to this Policy by 
fully complying with all requirements of the Company 
as well as all applicable industry, administration, na-
tional and international regulations.

Tankerska Next Generation is committed to make ef-
ficient use of energy aboard its ships with the purpose 
of preserving natural resources, reducing atmospheric 
emissions and helping to mitigate the effects of climate 
change.

These objectives are mainly achieved through the 
delivery of four Eco-Design product tankers in 2015. 
Eco ships have various improvements to its operating 
system, such as improved engines and improved larger 
propellers which reduce fuel consumption. The new 
generation of engines and other improvements in the 
operating system on the eco-designed ships can provide 
a significant reduction in fuel consumption and emissions 
into the atmosphere, including CO2.

Climate change caused by CO2 emissions pose a threat 
to the environment and wildlife and can pose operational 
and commercial challenges for the  business operations 
of Tankerska Next Generation.

Work on reducing CO2 emissions into the air and our 
commitment to curb CO2 emissions and other harmful 
gases in the atmosphere has proved positive for the fleet, 
since in the same way it helped reduce fuel consump-
tion, and thereby increase the efficiency of the fleet.

Eco-design of our fleet allows compliance with various 
regulatory issues, including emissions (NO, CO, C02, C), 
and ease of implementation of the ballast water treat-
ment system (BWT), which will have to be implemented 
in order to meet the regulatory requirements of US coast 
guard, and thus further reduce the environmental impact.

UN sustainable development goals achievement

 Goals of UN
’s Sustainable developm

ent.
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Economic sustainability 

Contribution to economic prosperity 

Tankerska Next Generation regularly and transparently 
calculates and pays taxes, contributions and other fees 
pursuant to the regulations of the Republico of Croatia. 
By doing this, the Company contributes substantially to 
the functioning and development of numerous activities 
important to everyday life in the community. 

TNG keeps proper accounting records, which will at any 
time with reasonable accuracy present the financial 
position of the Company and comply with the Croatian 
Accounting Law.
 
Our financial obligations towards suppliers are executed 
within the set deadlines, and in this way we contribute 
to the optimization of delivery channels.

Optimization of delivery channels

Tankerska Next Generation seeks to optimize the delivery 
chains in which it operates and thus contribute to the 
efficiency of its operations, and the operations of all 
parties, and interest groups involved in the delivery 
channels. Every day lost due to barriers in the supply chain 
drives up the costs, but if coupled with understanding and 
customer experiences from the field, inefficiencies can be 
eliminated. TNG endures on it through the adjustment of 
its business with a variety of industrial protocols and by 
adopting quality standards. Furthermore, we are looking 
for the highest quality standards from our suppliers, as 
well as to comply with ethical guidelines that must include 
respect for fundamental human rights, labor standards, 
the attitude towards the environment and employees.

Market relations

Good practices of Corporate governance

Tankerska Next Generation as a business entity that 
operates and develops its business in the Croatian and 
international market, is aware of the importance of 
responsible and ethical conduct of business entities as 
a necessary precondition for developing quality relations 
and loyal competition between business partners, and for 
the effective functioning of the market and the integration 
of the Croatian economy. The Company is developing and 
operating in accordance with good corporate govern-
ance practice and strives to practice business strategies  
and business policies which result in transparent and 
efficient business operations and quality relations with 
the business environment in which it operates.

Corporate responsibility

Alongside with compliance with good practices of 

corporate governance, the key of successful and timely 
conducted transport is vessel maintenance. That is the 
cornerstone of good market relations with our clients. 
Well maintained vessels are key to ensure on-time 
delivery and a smooth voyage. It can prevent expensive 
delays, idle costs and repairs, and ultimately keep crew 
and cargo from undue risks.

All our vessels are equipped with modern technologies that 
are safer for the nature and the environment. Technology 
is considered as good as the people who operate it. That 
is precisely the reason we take care that all our employees 
are well aware of the ship’s equipment and systems, and 
that is the reason why we constantly hold trainings and 
lectures. We build new vessels in close cooperation with 
shipyards, sharing our experience and know how in the 
design process as well as during the actual construction. 
We order our vessels exclusively in shipyards which can 
achieve the highest world standards.

Anti corruption

Corruption impedes access to global markets and 
constitutes barriers for economic and social develop-
ment around the world. For businesses in the maritime 
sector, corruption also escalates costs, endangers the 
safety and well-being of the crew and poses legal and 
reputational risk. 

Although good business relations in different parts of the 
world are differently defined and denominated, Tankerska 
Next Generation adopted a zero tolerance on corruption 
and this attitude is held in our business relationships.
Anticorruption program obliges all employees of Tankerska 
Next Generation, regardless of the level and position that 
they have to report any attempt of corruptive behavior 
towards them or others. In achieving these goals, employee 
training, alongside control is a key tool. Anti-corruption 
training sessions are conducted through daily individual 
training of our employees, while the code of conduct 
of our employees is defined in the Code of Corporate 
Governance Tankerska Next Generation.

In order to ensure an efficient fight against corruption 
employees of Tankerska Next Generation, whether on 
land or at sea, have continuous access to local intranet 
through which they can promptly report any form of 
corruption to the designated department. 

Work environment

Stimulating workplace

Tankerska Next Generation is actively involved in creating 
a positive, safe and motivating working environment for 
all employees through: Opportunities for lifelong learning 
and investment in the competence of its employees 
through professional training, incentives for innovation, 
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recognizing individuals and teams which achieve best 
results, the system of rewarding the employees and 
the possibility of career development within the Group, 
a high degree of safety in the workplace, recreation 
and socializing through sports, flexible working hours 
and modern workplace with all necessary tools to work.

Culture of diversity

Even though shipping is considered a male dominated 
area, the Group encourages employment of women, both 
on land and sea.  TNG and its fleet manager Tankerska 
Plovidba through 60 years of tradition developed a 
culture that appreciates differences which is manifested 
in equal opportunities for all employees, regardless of 
sex, race or religion. We see diversity of our employees 
as an advantage which brings added value to business, 
and helps achieving Company objectives. 

Zero accidents

Operating at sea involves health, safety and security risks 
that must always be managed carefully to safeguard 
the crew, the cargo, the environment and the vessel. A 
healthy and safe working environment for employees 
comes before anything else. All employees must return 
home from work safely.

This means that TNG’s ambition is zero accidents and 
that the Company operates by the principle that no injury 
or environmental incident is acceptable.

To support our safety culture, TNG has in place a safety 
management system and safety policy, compliant with 
the International Safety Management Code. Each year 
Tankerska Plovidba conducts monitoring of standards of 
Health, Safety, Quality, Environmental & Energy Manage-
ment for the fleet. 

The product tankers of TNG are constantly tested by the 
inspectors of large oil companies and the port authorities 
to determine that the fleet is in according to regulatory 
and safety requirements of navigation.

Care for health, safety and future

Regular medical check-ups are organized for all employees 
in the Company once a year, the check-ups include the 
highest level of diagnostics at a prominent hospital. The 
results of medical examinations are thoroughly analysed, 
and preventive health measures are undertaken to reduce 
diseases of employees.

The company contracted the collective accident insur-
ance with hospital days for all employees, which provides 
additional employees safety in the workplace and outside 
of it, as are insured in case of  accident, illness, disability, 
serious neurological condition, and death.

A monthly payment of the Company in the voluntary 

pension fund for each employee ensures the long-term 
savings and additional benefits that are thus achieved, 
so that our employees can better dedicate their business 
tasks. In this way, our employees provide independent 
savings with regular returns.

Community relations

Proffesionals who contribute the community

Continuous service reliability requires that shipowners are 
able to bring the right competencies and leadership skills 
into play on each trip. Recognising that the workforce at 
sea is instrumental in this ambition, NORDEN wants to 
attract and retain the best people and be the preferred 
employer in the market.

On-board training, early action on maintenance and high-
quality workmanship are continuous priorities to TNG 
to deliver a consistent and safe service to customers. 
Reliability and customer understanding have been strong 
contributory factors in TNG landing a series of long term 
contracts.

Our crew is highly qualified, they pride themselves on 
being team players who are motivated and dedicated 
to the company. The crew is homogeneous, as most 
of them have worked on Tankerska plovidba’s vessels 
throughout their careers.

Most of the crew on board graduated in Zadar’s Nautical 
high school and the Zadar Nautical College. They frequently 
serve on the same teams, knowing their colleagues and 
the ship’s operations thoroughly, which contributes to 
their homogeneousness and success as a team.

Tankerska Next Generation employees a crew of over 250 
seafarers, mostly from the Zadar region which certainly 
contributes to the development of our region as the 
gross wages of seamen employed on ships of TNG are 
significantly above the Croatian average.

Cooperation with the academic community

Tankerska Next Generation is always happy to respond 
to numerous inquiries from the academic community, we 
participate in many polls, and our employees are happy to 
provide assistance to students dealing with maritime and 
economic topics in their presentations and dissertations. 
Member of the Board, Mr. John Karavanić, during 2017 
participated in the debate club of Faculty of Economics 
in Zagreb, giving a lecture as part of the “Uhvati me za 
riječ” programme (“Take my word” programme).
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Pursuant to Article 263, paragraph 3, Article 280, paragraph 3, and Article 300c and d. of the Companies Act 

(Official Gazzette, no. 152/11  ­  consolidated  text, 111/12  and 68/13),  Supervisory Board  TANKERSKA NEXT 

GENERATION Inc. at its 23. session held on 30th April 2019 adopted the 

 

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD OF TANKERSKA NEXT GENERATION d.d.  ON PERFORMED SUPERVISION 

OF THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN 2018 

 

Tankerska Next Generation is a shipping company incorporated in August 2014. which owns and operates a fleet 

of MT product tankers which provides  international shipping transportation services of derivates, chemicals, 

and oil to the national oil companies, oil majors, and derivates, chemicals and oil traders. The main markets in 

which the Company operates is the international maritime transport of oil products and edible oil, and therefore 

provides transport services to large energy companies, large oil retailers and large manufacturers of oil and oil 

products and various other entities that depend on sea transport. 

 

At the end of 2018 TNG operates a fleet of 6 vessels,two conventional MR ice class product tankers MT Velebit 

and MT Vinjerac, and four ECO designed MR product tankers; MT Zoilo, MT Vukovar, MT Dalmacija i MT Pag. 

 

During 2018  the Supervisory board had  the  following  structure which was set up  in 2016.: Mr.  Ivica Pijaca, 

president, Mr. Mario Pavić, deputy president, Mr. Joško Miliša, member, Mr. Nikola Mišetić, member, Mr. Nikola 

Koščica, member. 

 

The Group currently holds two time charter contracts (MT Dalmacija and MT Velebit), which were signed  in 

accordance with customary market practices and are based on industry standard conditions for such contracts. 

In April 2019, the time charter contract for MT Vinjerac has expired. The rest of vessels were employed on the 

spot market in order to maximize their commercial potential at present market terms , or until the awaited time 

charter recovery. 

 

Time charter market conditions showed a significant recovery in the fourth quarter of 2018, and especially in 

December 2018, but in the full year, shipping companies were faced with a number of challenges to maximize 

the commercial potential of  the fleet. Despite  the market volatility  that characterized 2018, Tankerska Next 

Generation generated an EBITDA of US $ 14.0 million, relying on vessels that held chartered contracts on time, 

with quality  input  from  vessels operating on  the  spot market. The  fleet's  stronger engagement  in  the  spot 

market resulted in a stable financial position and operating profit of $ 5 million. 

 

TNG has  completed  its business year  in 2018 with USD 300m HRK  in  revenue  ( USD 47.8m), which  slightly 

increased  in comparison  the previous year 2017, while EBITDA amounted  to HRK 87.9m  (USD 14.0 million), 

which  in kunas compared to HRK 110.2m realized  in 2017  is a decrease of 25.7%. The net profit of TNG was 

6.284 million HRK (USD 1.0m). 

 

EBIT in 2018 amounts to HRK 32.6m (USD 5m) and is the result of stable income of two time charter contracts, 

contributions from the spot market and it corresponding increased costs as a result of the greater exposure to 

the spot market.
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Increased  ship  revenue during 2018 primarily  reflects a customised employment  strategy whereas a higher 

number of units (3) were on the spot market (for most of the year) in which TNG as a company reconciles fuel, 

port costs and other costs associated with the voyages. This business strategy covers a significant part of the 

cost, which, for the units that are employed on time charter, are absorbed by the charterer and compensated 

through increased revenues. 

 

The average vessel’s TCE net daily rate during 2018 was recorded at USD 13,201 and shows a decrease 

compared to a level of USD 15,525 per day in 2017, and are in line with changes in market conditions. 

 

Adjusting  the  fleet  employment  strategy  to  the  current  market  conditions  offered  management  enough 

flexibility to ease the current market volatilities, and resulted in an increase of revenues during the reporting 

period. Using this mix between voyage and time charter contracts allows Tankerska Next Generation to timely 

react  to  the  expected  long  term  positive  changes  in  the  freight  rate  market.  Intensive  focus  on  the  cost 

effectiveness of the fleet operations allowed TNG to maintain the expenses on the last year’s level which helped 

to build solid foundations for the business operations in 2019 and expected recovery in freight rates..  

 

Following some of the key indicators, such as rising oil demand which shows stability, strengthening of the global 

economic activity, and reducing of oil derivatives reserves, it is possible to expect additional demand for tonne 

mile in the tanker product segment. According to available market analysis and the projections of order books, 

backed by the solid growth in consumption and refined cargo­targeted export and projected economic growth, 

we expect market recovery in the medium term. During the next period TNG’s management will focus on 

activities  aimed  at  achieving  the optimal  structure of  employment  and providing  the  resources needed  to 

continue with balanced business operations, while  adapting  to  the  changes  in  the  regulatory  environment 

related  to  the  entry  into  force  of  Sulphur  emission  regulations  and  the  application  of  the  ballast  water 

management convention, and securing the resources for the implementation of the regulatory requirements. 

 

The  Supervisory  Board  report  was  prepared  for  2018  and  includes  the  period  of  business  operations  of 

Tankerska Next Generation Inc. (The Company) from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. 

  

Supervisory Board of  the Company  (Supervisory Board),  in  accordance with  the powers established by  the 

Companies Act and  the Articles of Association of  the Company, continuously supervised  the conduct of  the 

Company’s business operations during 2018, making decisions and conclusions on  the  five meetings held  in 

2018. Through the Auditing committee, the Board focused on the area of  internal and external auditing and 

thus further emphasized and considered the minimization of business risk. 

 

By supervising the Company’s business operations during 2018,  the Supervisory Board discussed key  issues 

related to the operations of the Company and  its subsidiaries and was regularly reported by the Company’s 

Management.  Management  reported  to  the  Supervisory  Board  on  all  major  business  events,  income  and 

expenses, capital  investments, and  the current business status. The Management Board regularly submitted 

written business reports. to the Supervisory Board on quarterly, semi­annual and annual basis. 

 

During 2015, regular shares of the Company were included  in the regulated capital market and the Code of

Corporate  Governance  of  the  Zagreb  Stock  Exchange  and  HANFA  began  to  apply.  The  Supervisory  Board 

established the Audit Committee. Remuneration and appointment committees have not been appointed during 
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the business year 2018 given the totality of the operations and the specifics of the Company’s organization and 

will be established as “ad hoc” bodies of the Supervisory Board, according to the needs and activities of the 

relevant scope. The Supervisory Board discussed and received a report on the work of the Audit Committee for 

2018. (Sergej Dolezil, President, Genarij Sutlovic, Member, Mario Pavić, Member). 

  

By reviewing the Company’s business operations, the Supervisory Board found that in 2018  the  Company 

operated in compliance with the law, the Company’s Articles of Association, and the decisions of the Company’s 

General Assembly. 

 

Within the statutory deadline pursuant to Article 300 C. of the Companies Act, the Supervisory Board examined 

the  Annual  Financial  Statements  of  the  Company  and  Subsidiaries  for  the  year  ended  31 December  2018 

together  with  the  opinion  of  the  Independent  Auditor  Deloitte d.o.o. Zagreb, Zagrebtower, Radnička 80 

(Auditor), filed by the Management of the Company. 

 

The  Supervisory  Board  has  also  received  the  Related  Party  Transactions  Report  from  the Management  in 

accordance with Article 497 of the Companies Act. 

 

The Supervisory Board has determined that the Company’s Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 

December  2018  have been prepared in accordance with the Company’s business records and show the 

Company’s and its affiliated companies’ fair and good business standing. 

 

The Company operates in a specific business environment where business processes and reporting methods are 

regulated by a special regulation, the  IMO Code, which prescribes how to conduct business books, reporting 

and other regulatory obligations to the government bodies. 

 

In accordance with such findings, the Supervisory Board agrees with the Annual Financial Statements for 2018 

and the opinion of the Auditor, and pursuant to the Article 300.d of the Companies Act, the Management and 

the Supervisory Board accept and establish the Company’s Annual Financial Statements. 

 

An integral part of the Annual Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the business year 

ended 31 December 2018 are: 

 

1. Statement of Income and Other Comprehensive Income; 

2. Report on the financial position of the company; 

3. Statement of Cash Flows; 

4. Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity; 

5. Notes to the financial statements: 

6. Annual Report on the Company and Subsidiaries’ Statements and 

7. Independent Auditor’s Opinion 

 

The Supervisory Board also examined the Annual Report of the Management Board of the Company and  its 

subsidiaries and the situation of the Company and its subsidiaries for 2018 and found that it  is accurate and 

objective in presenting the current business situation and the situation of the Company and its subsidiaries. In 
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accordance with such findings, the Supervisory Board accepted the Management Board’s report on the 

Company’s and subsidiary’s status for the business year 2018. 

 

The Management Board presented to the Supervisory Board a proposal of the Decision on the distribution of 

the Company’s Profit for the Year 2018 which determines that the Company’s profit for 2018 should be allocated 

to mandatory reserves and to retained profit. 

 

The Supervisory Board agrees with the proposed proposal of the Decision on the distribution of the Company’s 

Profit for 2018 and proposes to the General Assembly of the Company the adoption of such a decision. 

 

 

                                                            President of the Supervisory board 

                                       

             Ivica Pijaca 



Annual company status report for the year 2018

Signed on behalf of the Management Board by:

                                              
                John Karavanić,  

Member of the Management Board
Tankerska Next Generation d.d. 

Zadar, April 30th 2019                                                            
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Responsibility for the financial statements 

Pursuant to the Accounting Act of the Republic of Croatia, the Managing Board is responsible for ensuring that 
financial statements are prepared for each financial year in accordance with International Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (IFRSs), as adopted by the European Union (the EU) which give a true and fair view of the financial position 
and results of operations of Tankerska Next Generation d.d. and its subsidiaries (hereinafter: “TNG”) for that period.
After making enquiries, the Management Board has a reasonable expectation that TNG has adequate resources 
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Management Board has prepared 
these financial statements under the assumption that TNG will continue as a going concern. 

In preparing those financial statements, the Management Board is responsible for:

• selecting suitable accounting policies and then applying them consistently; 
• making reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates; 
• following applicable accounting standards and disclosing and explaining any material departures in the    
 financial statements; and
• preparing the financial statements under the going-concern assumption unless the assumption is 
 inappropriate.  

The Management Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of TNG and for its compliance with the Croatian Accounting Act. The 
Management Board is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of TNG, and hence for taking reasonable steps 
for the prevention and detection of embezzlement and other illegal acts.

The Management Board authorised these financial statements for issue on 30 April 2019.

 

John Karavanić,  
Member of the Management Board

Tankerska Next Generation d.d.
Božidara Petranovića 4

23000 Zadar
Republic of Croatia 

Zadar, April 30th 2019  



































































































































Additional 
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IMPORTANT INDUSTRY TERMS AND CONCEPTS

The Group uses a variety of industry terms and concepts when analysing its own performance. These include the 
following:

Revenue Days. Revenue Days represent the total number of calendar days the Group’s vessels were in possession 
of the Group during a period, less the total number of Off-Hire Days during that period generally associated with
repairs, drydocking or special or intermediate surveys.

Consequently, Revenue Days represent the total number of days available for a vessel to earn revenue. Idle days, 
which are days when a vessel is available to earn revenue, yet is not employed, are included in Revenue Days. 
The Group uses Revenue Days to explain changes in its net voyage revenues (equivalent to time charter earnings) 
between periods.

Off-Hire Days. Off-Hire Days refer to the time a vessel is not available for service due primarily to scheduled and 
unscheduled repairs or drydocking.

When a vessel is off-hire, or not available for service, the charterer is generally not required to pay the charter 
hire rate and the Group will be responsible for all costs, including the cost of fuel bunkers unless the charterer is 
responsible for the circumstances giving rise to the lack of availability. Prolonged off-hire may obligate the vessel 
owner to provide a substitute vessel or permit the charter termination.

The Group’s vessels may be out of service, that is, off-hire, for several reasons: scheduled drydocking, special 
surveys, vessel upgrade or maintenance or inspection, which are referred to as scheduled off-hire; and unsched-
uled repairs, maintenance, operational deficiencies, equipment breakdown, accidents/incidents, crewing strikes, 
certain vessel detentions or similar problems, or charterer’s failure to maintain the vessel in compliance with its 
specifications and contractual and/or market standards (for example major oil company acceptances) or to man a 
vessel with the required crew, which is referred to as unscheduled off-hire.

Operating Days. Operating Days represent the number of days the Group’s vessels are in operation during the year. 
Operating Days is a measurement that is only applicable to owned and not bareboated or chartered-in vessels. 
Where a vessel is under the Group’s ownership for a full year, Operating Days will generally equal calendar days. 
Days when a vessel is in a dry dock are included in the calculation of Operating Days as the Group still incurs vessel 
operating expenses.

Operating Days are an indicator of the size of the fleet over a period of time and affect both revenues and expenses 
recorded during that period.

(Net) Time Charter Equivalent (TCE). TCE is a standard shipping industry performance measure used primarily to 
compare daily earnings generated by vessels on time charters with daily earnings generated by vessels on voyage 
charters, because charter hire rates for vessels on voyage charters are generally not expressed per day as charter 
hire rates for vessels on time charters are. Therefore the net equivalent of a daily time voyage rate is expressed 
in net daily time charter rate.

(Net) TCE earnings. The Group defines time charter equivalent earnings, or TCE earnings, as vessel revenues less 
commissions and voyage-related costs (both major and minor) during a period.

TCE earnings is a measure of performance of a vessel or a fleet, achieved on a given voyage or voyages and it is 
expressed in US dollars per day. The Group’s definition of TCE earnings may not be the same as that used by other 
companies in the shipping or other industries.

(Net) TCE rates. The Group defines time charter equivalent rates, or TCE rates, as vessel revenues less commission 
and voyage related costs (both major and minor) during a period divided by the number of Revenue Days during
that period.

TCE rates is a measure of the average daily revenue performance of a vessel or a fleet, achieved on a given voyage 
or voyages and it is expressed in US dollars per day. TCE rates correspond to the net voyage earnings per day. The 
Group’s definition of TCE rates may not be the same as that used by other companies in the shipping or other 
industries.
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The Group uses the foregoing methodology for calculating TCE rates and TCE earnings in cases of both time charter 
and voyage charter contracts.

Gross Time Charter rates (GTC rates). The Group defines gross time charter rates, or GTC rates, as vessel revenues 
during a period divided by the number of Revenue Days during that period.

GTC rates should reflect the average daily charter rate of a vessel or a fleet and is expressed in US dollars per day. 
The Group’s definition of GTC rate may not be the same as that used by other companies in the shipping or other 
industries.

Daily vessel operating expenses. Daily vessel operating expenses is a metric used to evaluate the Group’s ability 
to efficiently operate vessels incurring operating expenses and to limit these expenses.

Daily vessel operating expenses represent vessel operating expenses divided by the number of Operating Days of 
vessels incurring operating expenses and is expressed in US dollars per day.

Average number of vessels. Historical average number of owned vessels consists of the average number of vessels 
that were in the Group’s possession during a period. The Group uses average number of vessels primarily to highlight 
changes in vessel operating costs. 

Fleet utilization. Fleet utilization is the percentage of time that the Group’s vessels generate revenues. The shipping 
industry uses fleet utilization to measure a company’s efficiency in finding employment for its vessels and in 
minimizing the number of days that its vessels are off-hire for reasons such as scheduled repairs, drydocking, 
surveys or other reasons other than commercial waiting time.

Fleet utilization is calculated by dividing the number of Revenue Days during a period by the number of Operating 
Days during that period.

Important chartering contracts

The Group’s performance can be affected by some of the following types of charter contracts:

Time charter. Time charter is a contract under which a charterer pays a fixed daily hire rate on a semi-monthly or 
monthly basis for a fixed period of time for using the vessel. Subject to any restrictions in the charter, the charterer 
decides the type and quantity of cargo to be carried and the ports of loading and unloading. Under a time charter 
the charterer pays substantially all of the voyage-related costs (etc. port costs, canal charges, cargo manipulation 
expenses, fuel expenses and others). The vessel owner pays commissions on gross voyage revenues and the vessel 
operating expenses (etc. crew wages, insurance, technical maintenance and other).

Time charter rates are usually fixed during the term of the charter. Vessels operating on time charters for a certain 
period of time provide more predictable cash flows over that period of time, but can yield lower profit margins than 
vessels operating under voyage charters in the spot market during periods characterized by favourable market 
conditions. Prevailing time charter rates fluctuate on a seasonal and year-on-year basis reflecting changes in spot 
charter rates, expectations about future spot charter rates and other factors. The degree of volatility in time charter 
rates is lower for longer-term time charters compared to shorter-term time charters.

Voyage charter. Voyage charter involves the carriage of a specific amount and type of cargo from a specific loading 
port(s) to a specific unloading port(s) and most of these charters are of a single voyage nature. The owner of the 
vessel receives one payment derived by multiplying the tonnes of cargo loaded on board by the cost per cargo 
tonne. The owner is responsible for the payment of all expenses including commissions, voyage-related costs, 
operating expenses and capital costs of the vessel. The charterer is typically responsible for any costs associated 
with any delay at the loading or unloading ports. Voyage charter rates are volatile and fluctuate on a seasonal and
year-on-year basis.

Other charters. Besides the two most common charters (time and voyage) the shipping industry provides other 
types of contracts between the ship owner and the charterer.
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Bareboat charter. Bareboat charter is a contract pursuant to which the vessel owner provides the vessel to the 
charterer for a fixed period of time at a specified daily rate, and the charterer provides for all of the vessel’s operating 
expenses in addition to the commissions and voyage related costs, and generally assumes all risk of operation. The 
charterer undertakes to maintain the vessel in a good state of repair and efficient operating condition and drydock 
the vessel during the term of the charter consistent with applicable classification society requirements.

Time charter trip. Time charter trip is a short term time charter where the vessel performs a single voyage between 
loading port(s) and unloading port(s). Time charter trip has all the elements of a time charter including the upfront 
fixed daily hire rate.

Important financial and operating terms and concepts

The Group uses a variety of financial and operational terms and concepts when analysing its own performance. 
These include the following:

Vessel revenues. The Group generates revenues by charging customers for the transportation of their oil products 
using its own vessels. Historically, the Operating Fleet’s services have generally been provided under time charters 
although the Group may enter into voyage charters in the future. The following describes these basic types of 
contractual relationships:

Time charters, under which the vessels are chartered to customers for a fixed period of time at rates that are 
generally fixed; and

Voyage charters, under which the vessels are chartered to customers for shorter intervals that are priced on a 
current or “spot” market rate.

The table below illustrates the primary distinctions among these types of charters and contracts:

Time Charter Voyage Charter

Typical contract lenght 1-5 years
Single voyages, consecutive voyages 
and contracts of affreighment (COA)

Hire rate basis Daily Varies

Commercial fee The Group pays The Group pays

Commissions The Group pays The Group pays

Major Vessel related costs Customer pays The Group pays

Minor Vessel related costs The Group pays The Group pays

Vessel operating costs The Group pays The Group pays

Off-hire Customer does not pay Customer does not pay

Under a time charter the charterer pays substantially all of the voyage-related costs. The vessel owner pays 
commissions on gross vessel revenues and also the vessel operating expenses. Time charter rates are usually 
fixed during the term of the charter. 
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Vessels operating under time charters provide more predictable cash flows over a given period of time, but can yield 
lower profit margins than vessels operating under voyage charters in the spot market during periods character-
ized by favourable market conditions. Prevailing time charter rates fluctuate on a seasonal and year-on-year basis 
reflecting changes in spot charter rates, expectations about future spot charter rates and other factors. The degree 
of volatility in time charter rates is lower for longer-term time charters as opposed to shorter-term time charters. 

Other revenues. Other revenues primary includes revenues from charterers for other services and revenues from 
profit commission on insurance policies.

Commercial fee. Commercial fees expenses include fees paid to the Fleet Manager, under the Management Agree-
ment, for providing the Group with chartering and commercial management services.

Commissions. Commissions are realized in two basic forms: addressed commission and brokerage commission.

Addressed commission is commission payable by the ship owner to the charterer, regardless of charter type and is 
expressed as a percentage of the freight or hire. This commission is a reimbursement to the charterer for costs incurred 
in relation to the chartering of the vessel either to third party brokers or by the charterer’s shipping department.

Brokerage commission is payable under a time charter on hire. Subject to the precise wording of the charter, the 
broker’s entitlement to commission will therefore only arise when the charterers remit hire or is recovered by some 
other means. Commission under a voyage charter is payable on freight, and may also be payable on deadfreight 
and demurrage. 

Voyage-related costs. Voyage-related costs are typically paid by the ship owner under voyage charters and by the 
customer under time charters. Voyage-related costs are all expenses which pertain to a specific voyage. The Group 
differs major and minor voyage-related costs.

Most of the voyage-related costs are incurred in connection with the employment of the fleet on the spot market 
(voyage charter) and under COAs (contracts of affreightment). Major voyage-related costs include bunker fuel 
expenses, port fees, cargo loading and unloading expenses, canal tolls, agency fees, extra war risks insurance and 
any other expenses related to the cargo are typically paid by the customer.

Minor voyage-related expenses such as draft surveys, tank cleaning, postage and other minor miscellaneous 
expenses related to the voyage may occur and are typically paid by the ship owner. From time to time, the ship 
owner may also pay a small portion of above mentioned major voyage-related costs.

Vessel operating costs. The Group is responsible for vessel operating costs which include crewing, repairs and 
maintenance, lubricants, insurance, spares, stores, registration and communication and sundries.

Vessel operating costs also includes management fees paid to the Fleet Manager, under the Management Agreement, 
for providing the Group with technical and crew management, insurance arrangements and accounting services.
The largest components of vessel operating costs are generally crews and repairs and maintenance. Expenses for 
repairs and maintenance tend to fluctuate from period to period because most repairs and maintenance typically 
occur during periodic drydocking. These expenses may tend to increase as these vessels mature and thus the extent 
of maintenance requirements expands.

Depreciation and amortization. The Group depreciates the original cost, less an estimated residual value, of its 
vessels on a straight-line basis over each vessel’s estimated useful life. The estimated useful life of 25 years is the 
Management Board’s best estimate and is also consistent with industry practice for similar vessels. The residual 
value is estimated as the lightweight tonnage of each vessel multiplied by an estimated scrap value (cost of steel) 
per tone. The scrap value per tone is estimated taking into consideration the historical Indian sub-continent five 
year scrap market rate. 

Depreciation expense typically consists of charges related to the depreciation of the historical cost of the vessels 
(less an estimated residual value) over the estimated useful lives of the vessels and charges relating to the depre-
ciation of upgrades to vessels, which are depreciated over the shorter of the vessel’s remaining useful life or the 
life of the renewal or upgrade. The Group reviews the estimated useful life of vessels at the end of each annual 
reporting period.
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Drydocking and surveys (special and intermediate). The vessels are required to undergo planned drydocking for 
replacement of certain components, major repairs and maintenance of other components, which cannot be carried out 
while the vessels are operating, approximately every 30 months or 60 months depending on the nature of work and 
external requirements. The Group intend to periodically drydock each of vessels for inspection, repairs and maintenance 
and any modifications to comply with industry certification or governmental requirements. The number of drydocking 
undertaken in a given period and the nature of the work performed determine the level of drydocking expenses.

Vessel impairment. The carrying amounts of the vessels are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exists, the vessel`s recoverable amount is estimated. 
Vessels that are subject to deprecation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be fully recoverable. The carrying values of the vessels may not represent 
their fair market value at any point in time since the market prices of second-hand vessels tend to fluctuate with 
changes in charter rates and the cost of newbuilds. Historically, both the charter rates and vessel values have been 
cyclical in nature.

Management Board’s judgment is critical in assessing whether events have occurred that may impact the carrying 
value of the vessels and in developing estimates of future cash flows, future charter rates, vessel operating expenses, 
and the estimated useful lives and residual values of those vessels. These estimates are based on historical trends 
as well as future expectations. Management Board’s estimates are also based on the estimated fair values of their 
vessels obtained from independent ship brokers, industry reports of similar vessel sales and evaluation of current 
market trends.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses comprise of the administrative staff 
costs, management costs, office expenses, audit, legal and professional fees, travel expenses and other expenses 
relating to administration.

Interest expense and finance costs. Interest expense and finance costs comprise of interest payable on borrowings 
and loans and foreign exchange gains and losses.

Tonnage tax. The tonnage tax regime is introduced into the Croatian maritime legislation by new amendments to 
the Maritime Act and is applicable from January 1, 2014. According to the relevant provisions of the Maritime Act 
(“Maritime Act”), qualifying companies may choose to have their shipping activities taxed on the basis of the net 
tonnage of their fleet instead of on the basis of their actual profits. Companies, having opted for the tonnage tax, 
must remain subject to this regime for the following 10 years. The qualifying company has to be a shipping company 
liable under the Croatian corporate tax on any profits it generates. Furthermore, it must operate the vessels which 
satisfy all applicable requirements, and most importantly, the qualifying company must be carrying out the strategic 
and commercial management activities of vessels in Croatia.

In the tonnage tax system, the shipping operations shifted from taxation of business income to tonnage-based 
taxation. Under the tonnage tax regime, the tax liability is not calculated on the basis of income and expenses as 
under the normal corporate taxation, but is based on the controlled fleet’s notional shipping income, which in turn 
depends on the total net tonnage of the fleet under management.

Summary of expenses. Under voyage charters, the Group will be responsible for commissions, all vessel voyage-
related costs and operating expenses. Under time charters, the charterer generally pays commissions, operating 
expenses and minor voyage-related costs. For both types of contracts the Group is responsible to pay fees to the 
Fleet Manager, under the Management Agreement. 
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The table below illustrates the payment responsibilities of the ship owner and charterer under a time and voyage 
charter.
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Cautionary note regarding forward-looking statements

Certain statements in this document are not historical facts and are forward-looking statements. They appear in 
a number of places throughout this document. From time to time, the Group may make written or oral forward-
looking statements in reports to shareholders and in other communications. Forward-looking statements include 
statements concerning the Group’s plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future events, future revenues or perfor-
mance, capital expenditure, financing needs, plans or intentions relating to acquisitions, competitive strengths and 
weaknesses, business strategy and the trends which the Group anticipates in the industries and the political and 
legal environment in which it operates and other information that is not historical information.

Words such as „believe“, „anticipate“, „estimate“, „expect“, „intend“, „predict“, „project“, „could“, „may“, „will“, „plan“ 
and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, but are not the exclusive means of 
identifying such statements.

By their very nature, forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and 
specific, and risks exist that the predictions, forecasts, projections and other forward-looking statements will not 
be achieved. Prospective investors should be aware that a number of important factors could cause actual results 
to differ materially from the plans, objectives, expectations, estimates and intentions expressed in such forward-
looking statements.

When relying on forward-looking statements, investors should carefully consider the foregoing factors and other 
uncertainties and events, especially in light of the political, economic, social and legal environment in which the 
Group operates. Such forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they were made. Accord-
ingly, the Company does not undertake any obligation to update or revise any of them, whether as a result of new 
information, future events or otherwise, other than as required by applicable laws and the Zagreb Stock Exchange 
Rules. The Company makes no representation, warranty or prediction that the results anticipated by such forward-
looking statements will be achieved, and such forward-looking statements represent, in each case, only one of 
many possible scenarios and should not be viewed as the most likely or standard scenario.
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Zadar, April 30th 2019

Pursuant to the article 300.d, and in accordance with the provisions of Article 300.c of the Croatian Companies Act, 
the Supervisory Board of Tankerska Next Generation Inc., at its meeting held on 30th April 2019, passed the following

DECISION
on determining annual financial statements

I
Supervisory board approves the Annual Report for 2018 of Tankerska Next Generation Inc. which consists of: Income 
Statement and statement of other comprehensive income, Statement of financial position, Statement of cash flows, 
Statement of Changes in equity, Notes to the financial statements, Company status report and Independent auditors 
report by Deloitte Ltd. audit company from Zagreb.
       II
Following approval from the first paragraph of this Decision, the Annual Financial Statements of Tankerska Next 
Generation Inc. for the year 2018 are determined by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board.

        
President of the Supervisory Board
 Ivica Pijaca
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                        Zadar, April 30th 2019

Pursuant to the Croatian Companies Act and the Articles of association of the Company, the Management Board and 
the Supervisory Board of Tankerska Next Generation Inc., at its meeting held on 30th April 2019, passed the following

DECISION
on utilization of profit for the year 2018

I
It is determined that Tankerska Next Generation Inc. in the year ending with December 31st 2018 realized net profit in 
the amount of HRK 6,284,497.84.

A part of net profit in the amount of HRK 5,970,272.95 shall be allocated to retained reserves.

A part of net profit in the amount of HRK 314,224.89 shall be allocated to mandatory earnings.

II
This proposal will be proposed to the General Assembly by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of the 
Company.

Management Board      President of the Supervisory Board
John Karavanić        Ivica Pijaca
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